
1

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, June 10, 2008

Present: Selectmen Ives and Maxfield. Selectman Bowles was not present.
Also present: Stanley Prescott Planning Board member, Police Chief, Code
Enforcement/Compliance Officer Bob Fiske, Roy Merrill ZBA member, and David
Powelson ZBA Chairman.

Chairman Ives called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.

I. Selectman Maxfield moved to approve the Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes of
Tuesday, June 3, 2008 as presented. Seconded by Chairman Ives. All in
favor. Motion carried.

II. Chairman Ives opened the Board of Permit.
a. Bob Fiske presented 4 Hawker and Peddler’s Applications.

1. Sprint/Nextel Tower at Sunnyside Maples: Mr. Fiske stated
that this is for the COW tower and all paperwork is in order.
This is the same application as last year.

2. Speedway Sports Park: Mr. Fiske stated that this is the same
application as last year, and Mr. Franssen will forward the
certificate of insurance as it was signed today.

3. Brookside Mall: Mr. Fiske stated that this is the same
application as last year with no expansion.

4. Z-1 Express: Mr. Fiske stated that all the insurance
paperwork is in order. He said the applicant plans on having
three 10 X 20 spots in front of the store on the grass median
facing Route 106 and one additional 10 X 20 spot directly
behind the store on the grass. Discussion ensued regarding
the access to this site being from Staniels Road.

b. Mr. Fiske discussed the VOA Senior Housing Building relative to the
issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy and conditions of the
landscaping. He said that not all of the landscaping requirements have
been completed as agreed to. Mr. Fiske said there are two neighbors
who are not happy with the landscaping and said that Julia Wilcox
agreed that they would be sure if there were not enough trees, they
would fill the area in and that the lights would be covered so they were
not shining bright in the parking lot. Mr. Prescott stated he felt that
Mr. Fiske should follow up on this issue. Mr. Fiske stated that he
could forward a letter to Ms. Wilcox. Discussion ensued regarding
options for seeing that the issues are addressed. Mr. Fiske said that
one of the requirements was that if the landscaping was not completed

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


2

by June 1, 2008, then VOA would be mandated to supply a $30,000.00
bond. The Board agreed to have Mr. Fiske forward a letter to VOA
addressing the requirements.

c. Mr. Fiske discussed property owned by Geraldine Gowlis on Bee Hole
Road relative to the number of apartments and kitchens. He said the
first floor area previously had an apartment with a separate sink and
stove and was closed off; now, the wall has been removed, the stove is
gone, but the sink is still in place. Mr. Fiske said Ms. Gowlis is
considering this a “wet bar” as the area is opened up to the main
house. He said there is always the possibility that the wall could be
put back in and it could be turned back in to an apartment. Mr. Fiske
said the apartment in the basement no longer has a stove and while the
actual sink has been removed, the countertop has the cut out and all the
plumbing remains. He said that he has advised Ms. Gowlis that she
needed to have the trap permanently capped off as it was still filled
with water. Mr. Fiske went on to say that Ms. Gowlis agreed to
permanently cap the trap and said that he had advised her that he
would be meeting with the Board of Permit for their input. Mr.
Powelson said it has been a tough call and an awkward situation as the
Town prohibits multi-family houses with three living areas and three
kitchens is very well defined. Mr. Fiske said that at this time, it
appears to be a single family house with a finished basement and there
is someone living in the basement and they are using a hotplate on the
countertop as there is no stove in place. He went on to say that it
would not take very much work for anyone to turn it back in to a three
family dwelling. Mr. Fiske said that while there is a gray area, he felt
Ms. Gowlis has done the best that she can at this time. He said what
he would like to see is that Ms. Gowlis remove the cabinets, and the
whole business. Mr. Fiske said at this time, yes, he feels it has been
reverted back to s single family home. Mr. Powelson said he felt the
plumbing should definitely be capped off. Selectman Maxfield
suggested that Mr. Fiske go back in a few months to do another
inspection. The Board agreed that Mr. Fiske will do periodic
inspections to monitor this situation.

d. Mr. Fiske discussed a request he had received from a property owner
regarding condominiumizing his property. Mr. Powelson stated that
this property does not meet the duplex zoning requirements, as an in-
law apartment it must have met the zoning requirements at the time it
was built, but now as far as ownership goes, it should not be treated
any different than if more than one person owns it, or if a husband and
wife, or condo association owns it, it shouldn’t be treated any
different. Chairman Ives said it is a substandard lot, as it does not
meet zoning requirements and if half of the property is to be sold, then
it would make it an even less conforming lot and there would have to
be some type of a condo association. Mr. Powelson said that there is
no way to subdivide the lot, that it would need a zoning ordinance

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


3

adjustment. Mr. Prescott said the issue would be the dual ownership
of the building. Discussion ensued regarding the zoning ordinance and
RSA’s relative to this issue, the apartments/in-law apartments that
were allowed back years ago, and issues with septic systems.
Chairman Ives will contact Attorney Mayer regarding this issue.

e. Mr. Fiske discussed changes that are happening at the NHMS and
stated he is having an increasingly difficult time dealing with the new
people. He said that there are the issues with the new sign relative to
the moving parts. Mr. Fiske advised the Track that there was a serious
problem with the moving parts of the sign and initially the movement
stopped. He said now it is right back to moving again. Mr. Fiske has
advised the Track personnel that they needed to go before the Zoning
Board and ask for some type of relief. He said that the new modular
building that is to be used as a temporary bank should be arriving
shortly and he has advised the Track personnel that they do need a
building permit for this structure. Discussion ensued regarding going
before the Planning Board. Mr. Powelson suggested there could be the
possibility that the moving sign could be utilized the week before
through the week after a big race event if the ZBA members agreed.
The Board agreed that the Track needs to follow the same regulations
as everyone else.

f. Mr. Fiske discussed the issue of the placement of safety cones on
Mudgett Hill Road relative to the road delineation and private
property. Discussion ensued regarding safety issues, the need for a
survey, and possible ways to delineate the separation between the road
and the private property. Chairman Ives will ask the Road Agent to
measure the road and talk with Mr. and Mrs. Leonard regarding this
issue.

g. Mr. Prescott stated that there is a reference to condominiums in the
Land Development Regulations which references RSA 356-b:3.

h. Mr. Prescott inquired if the access road off of Staniels Road near Z-1
Express and the Red Roof Inn had a bond in place. Discussion ensued.

Chairman Ives closed the Board of Permit and reconvened the Selectmen’s
Meeting.

III. The Board met with Police Chief, Code Enforcement/Compliance Officer Bob
Fiske.
a. Chairman Ives stated for the record that four pistol permits were

submitted for signature and approval.
b. Chairman Ives discussed compliance issue on Dee Dee Maratea’s

property on Berry Road relative to the retaining wall that collapsed.
Mr. Fiske said that nothing could be done until Ms. Maratea provided
engineered plans. He stated that he has driven past the area numerous
times and has not noticed any major erosion. Discussion ensued. The
Selectmen will forward a letter to Ms. Maratea inquiring about the
status of this project.

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


4

c. Discussion ensued regarding fuel purchases relative to utilizing the
funds from this year’s budget to store up as much fuel as possible in an
effort to help with next year’s budget. Mr. Fiske stated that he felt the
overhead costs associated with construction details etc., should be
looked at with regard to the increase in fuel costs.

IV. The Board began their review of weekly correspondence.
a. The Board received copies of weekly expenditure reports for review.
b. The Board received copies of the Library’s public hearing notice to

accept the $100,000.00 scheduled for Monday, June 16, 2008 at 5:00
PM at the Library.

c. The Board received copies of the breakdown for 2008 assessing
services from Cross Country Appraisal Group, LLC for review.

d. The Board received copies of an e-mail from Attorney O’Brien on the
re-districting litigation.

e. The Board received copies of the June 4, 2008 ZBA Site Walks.
f. The Board received copies of the NHMA Legislative Bulletin #25 for

review.
g. The Board received correspondence from PSNH regarding the Flag

Attachment update for review.

Selectman Maxfield moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:30 PM. Seconded by Chairman
Ives. All in favor. Meeting adjourned.

THE LOUDON BOARD OF SELECTMEN

____________________________________
Steven R. Ives, Chairman

____________________________________
Dustin J. Bowles, Selectman

____________________________________
Roger A. Maxfield, Selectman

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com

